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This Questions and Answers (Q&A) document supersedes the version published on June 5, 2025. All information contained herein reflects the most current guidance and should be referenced in place of any prior versions.

[bookmark: _Int_Ci3RcFeg][bookmark: _Int_dZzZtF00]The following answers are based on California Energy Commission (CEC) staff’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the Applicant’s responsibility to review the purpose of the solicitation and to determine whether or not their proposed project is eligible for funding by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The CEC cannot give advice as to whether or not a particular project is eligible for funding, because not all proposal details are known. 

Unless indicated otherwise, all section numbers identified are from the solicitation manual (for example, “Section II.B” refers to Section II.B of the solicitation manual) of Addendum 5. 

Availability of Funds

Q1:	Are the greenhouse gas reduction funds (GGRF) earmarked for this solicitation at risk?

A1:	All funding is contingent upon availability. 

Project Eligibility & Requirements 

Q2:	In the Grant Funding Opportunity (GFO), you state that the application must use a standard 11-point font. May we use a smaller font for captions and footnotes? 
		
A2:	Yes, you can use a small font for captions and footnotes.

Q3:    The top of each of the templates notes that applicants must sign the Application Form, however, there is no signature field available. Will a new template be provided or should a signature field be added manually?

A3: 	Applicants would submit Attachment 16, the Application Form, as part of their proposal. No signature on the form is required, as submittal of the proposal would constitute certification (by the Applicant) that the information provided is accurate.
		
Q4: 	Would previous Blueprint grant winners be eligible to apply if they do not own the land and infrastructure, but instead design, build and maintain it on behalf of the land and infrastructure owner?

A4: 	Yes, this is allowable as long as the applicant receives authorization from the  station site owner (and station site operator, if the station site operator is not the applicant); the proposed infrastructure supports a case study participant and/or fleet identified in the Final Blueprint developed under GFO-20-601 (Blueprints for Medium- and Heavy-Duty Zero-Emission Vehicle and Infrastructure); the applicant submits a Letter of Support (Attachment 9) from the Station Site Owner, and, if needed, Station Site Operator, confirming this authorization; and all other requirements of the solicitation are met.

Q5: 	Can an organization that did not author an eligible blueprint apply to implement a project listed in it, with authorization from the original blueprint awardee? For example, if Entity A developed a blueprint under GFO-20-601 but does not intend to pursue implementation, can Entity B apply as the lead applicant for this solicitation, assuming the project scope remains largely unchanged?

A5:	Yes, an organization that did not author an eligible Final Blueprint awarded to those in the listing provided in Section II.A.1. may apply to implement a project identified in the completed, CEC-approved Final Blueprint provided the organization receives authorization from the original blueprint awardee and submits the approved letter with the application to this solicitation. (See Section II.A., Eligible Applicants.) The scope of the project must also meet all of the requirements of Section II.B., Eligible Projects. The Applicant is responsible for managing and completing the scope of the project.

Q6:	If a project already received state funding from the California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) and was credited for its greenhouse gas (GHG) reductions under the project, can the applicant also apply for Implementation 2.0 funding for the same project—even if the GHG benefits have already been counted under that other program? I.e., can we claim the same GHG reductions in multiple applications? 

A6:	Applications submitted to GFO-24-611 will be evaluated on, among other factors, the degree to which the proposed project cost effectively reduces GHG emissions and reduces total GHG emissions in metric tons. See Section IV.E., Evaluation Criteria. A project that has received funding from another state agency may apply to this solicitation. An applicant may count full GHG benefits during the application process. However, the CEC will work with the Recipient to avoid double counting the GHG benefits across awarded projects upon award. Costs funded by the CEC must be actual costs incurred and not costs already funded by another agency or funding source, i.e., CalSTA and CEC cannot fund the same costs under a project. 

Q7:	Is it possible for an entity to edit their Blueprint to include an additional project that they would like to apply for the Implementation of? 

A7:	No, an entity may not edit their blueprint to include an additional project but may use Attachment 15 (Justification for Site Not Included in the Final Blueprint), to justify why it would like to include the additional project in the application and how it will conform to the recommendations in the Final Blueprint.

Q8:	Is a project defined as one application or one site? Is the project minimum of 10 (for small) and 20 (for large) required at the same site? Or can one small project application cover 5 chargers at two different sites? 

A8:	An application is defined as one project, and the project may contain multiple sites. (See Section II.B.) Applicant must provide the site addresses in the Application Form (Attachment 16) and explain in the Project Narrative (Attachment 1) how the proposed charging or refueling infrastructure will be distributed. 

Q9:	Is it possible for an entity that does not have a pre-approved Blueprint to submit a Blueprint to the CEC in order to apply for this round of Implementation funding?

A9:	No.

Q10.	Can the cost of an MDHD vehicle be used as match?

A10: 	Yes. The purchase, rent, or lease of new MDHD ZEVs may be eligible as match share. These costs are only eligible if they are incurred after execution of an awarded agreement. Existing vehicles are not eligible for reimbursement or match funding.

Q11: 	Match funding cannot be incurred until agreements are executed. Why did this treatment change in the recent manual revision? 

A11:  	Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funds do not allow match costs to be incurred until agreements have been executed.

Q12:	How does this solicitation assess the charging port capacity? In the instance where a 360 kW Power Cabinet supports three charging ports, charging capacity varies based on how many port are active simultaneously, 360 kW if only one port is active, 180 kW two ports are simultaneously active and 90 kW when three ports are simultaneously active. Is the maximum, average, minimum, or other factor considered for the amount of eligible funding available? 

A12. 	Please see Addendum 5, which no longer sets a maximum award amount per charging port. Projects will be evaluated on the degree to which the proposed infrastructure demonstrates a highly cost-effective use of CEC funds, with a low cost per charging port or refueling position relative to the power level or refueling capacity. Projects will be evaluated on both the dollar-per-port or refueling position and the dollar-per kW or kg.  

Please see Section I.E. How Award is Determined and Section I.G. Minimum Infrastructure Requirements and Maximum Award Amounts. 

Q13:	As written, this solicitation appears to encourage eliminating a charging port if the minimum simultaneous delivery is used as an applicant could receive $225,000 for a three port configuration ($75,000 * 3) and $500,000 ($250,000 * 2) for a two port configuration with the same power cabinet. Is the goal of the CEC to have higher power ratings for all applications as opposed to more charging ports? This seems like an odd incentive as it is cheaper to have a two port configuration than a three port configuration, but it is rewarded with more eligible dollars. 
 
A13. 	The CEC does not have a preference for higher power ratings over the number of charging ports. Applicants are encouraged to focus on the infrastructure needs for planned ZEVs and choose the infrastructure type(s) accordingly. Please see Addendum 5, which no longer sets a maximum award amount per charging port.   

Q14: 	In the vehicle deployment requirement (three MDHD EVs per DCFC), does the CEC define a “charger”? Is this per dispenser/port? For multi-port load-sharing systems does each port count as a separate charger or is the cabinet treated as one charger? 

A14: 	Section II.B.4 of Addendum 5 clarifies that vehicle deployment requirements are based on charging port instead of charger. For the purposes of this solicitation, “charging port” is defined as the system within a charger that charges one electric vehicle. A charging port may have multiple connectors, but it can provide power to charge only one electric vehicle through one connector at a time. In this solicitation CEC is defining charger as the ability to charge/dispense one vehicle at a time, regardless of how many connectors it has. For example, a multi-port-load sharing system that can simultaneously charge three (3) vehicles would count as three (3) charging ports.

Q15:	As an applicant with secure, fenced yards where public access poses safety and liability risks, is there an exception to the requirement that at least 25% of charging ports must be available for public access during normal hours? If not, this may limit eligibility for transit agencies. Can you clarify?

A15: 	The requirement that at least 25% of charging ports be available for public access during normal operating hours applies to applicants providing charging or fueling for the fleets of public entities (other than California state government agencies, which are ineligible under this solicitation).

In cases where access to secure or fenced yards is not feasible for safety or operational reasons, applicants may consider installing public-accessible infrastructure outside the fenced area. For example, chargers could be installed in a publicly accessible area of the property, such as a parking lot or designated zone outside the secured perimeter. Publicly dedicated equipment can also be built at a different location.

Q16:	Would the CEC clarify how “public access” is defined in this solicitation? Specifically, does it refer to walk-up use by the general public, or could access provided to other fleets or public agencies also qualify? If it does mean walk-up use, does that extend to light-duty drivers as well? 

A16: 	For purposes of this solicitation, “Public Access” is defined as “Open to the general public without restriction. Examples include truck stops and locations along major freight corridors or a mix of overnight and opportunity (en-route, fast charging/fast filling). Public Access may allow reservation systems so that operators are confident that a charging port or hydrogen nozzle will be available when they arrive.” 

Public Access stations must be accessible to the public with no obstructions or obstacles that preclude vehicle operators from entering the station premises, the user of the station must not be required to obtain or use access cards or personal identification codes for the station to dispense fuel, and no formal or registered station training is required for individuals to use the station.

Q17: 	Many public entities, like school districts and transit agencies, operate sites that are not open to the general public but still serve an essential public function. Would the CEC clarify whether these are considered Private Access or Public Access? 

A17: 	The CEC would consider this to be Private Access, or Shared Access if another fleet is using infrastructure at the depot. For the purposes of this solicitation, a school district’s or transit agency’s depot must propose infrastructure with at least 25% of the charging ports/hydrogen fueling positions available as Public Access during normal operating hours. The remaining 75% of infrastructure may be Public, Shared, or Private Access. 

Q18: 	The new solicitation addendum requires sites to be open 25% of the time to the general public. If a site is required to be open to the general public for part of the time, would those chargers then be subject to the same regulations and requirements as retail and public EVSE?

A18: 	The requirement is not that the sites be open to the public 25% of the time. Under Section II B., the requirement is “For infrastructure projects providing charging or fueling for the fleets of public entities (other than California state government agencies, which are ineligible under this GFO), applicants must propose infrastructure with at least 25% of the charging ports/hydrogen fueling positions available as Public Access during normal operating hours. The remaining 75% of infrastructure may be Public, Shared, or Private Access.”

See Section II.B.2. Eligible Project Accessibility Requirements.

Q19: 	Does the 25% public access requirement apply to public entities that are applying for non-road, private-access chargers? 

A19:	 Yes.

Q20: 	Would a school district be required to comply with payment system requirements for public charging? Public school districts are not well-positioned to handle financial transactions or store sensitive user/payment data. Installing and operating a secure point-of-sale system is both costly and outside the core mission of this type of project which is to deliver students safely to and from school. Will CEC provide funding to cover these point-of-sale systems, and will applicants be allowed (or expected) to partner with third-party operators who can handle payments and data security? 

A20: 	The equipment that will be 100% public access must meet the requirements for public access charging stations listed in Section II.C. Minimum Technical Requirements for Electric Vehicle Charging. There is no requirement for chargers to have a point of sale system. Nonetheless, point of sale systems are eligible reimbursable and match costs. Third-party operators may be included as an Applicant’s match share. 

Q21: 	The new public access requirement will likely cause additional maintenance burdens for applicants. Public chargers are significantly more expensive to maintain than private fleet chargers, and they’re also more susceptible to vandalism or damage. If a public-facing unit is vandalized and needs to be fully replaced, that could represent a very large unplanned expense for a school district. Can CEC clarify who would be responsible for covering these maintenance and replacement costs — the grantee, the district, or would there be supplemental funding available? 

A21: 	Equipment maintenance (i.e. maintenance for chargers used to recharge school buses) for the term of the agreement may be included as an Applicant’s match share. The entity responsible for covering maintenance and replacement costs would be the grantee.

Q22:	The solicitation notes that all EVSE installed for commercial use shall have a type approval certificate through the California Type Evaluation Program (CTEP) or National Type Evaluation Program (NTEP).  If the application serves a private fleet, is it exempt from CTEP? Furthermore, if it's mixed use for a public agency, then only the 25% open to the public needs to be CTEP?

A22: 	If the infrastructure is installed for a private fleet, CTEP certification is not required. In a mixed-use scenario, only the chargers accessible to the public and installed for commercial use are required to be CTEP-certified. “Commercial” in this context applies to “operations in which the amount dispensed affects customer charges or compensation” https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/dms/docs/publications/2024/2024_Combined_FRM.pdf.

Q23: 	The solicitation notes that "All station conduit runs installed must be sized to provide at least 350 kW." Is future proofing really required if site has no interest/need for expansion? 

A23:	Yes. For Public Access, charging stations must have conduit runs that are sized to provide at least 350 kW.

Q24:	Is bidirectional power flow a requirement?

A24: 	Bidirectional power flow is not a requirement and is optional.

Q25: 	Our proposed project will deploy equipment with 10 connectors, allowing 10 vehicles to be plugged in but only 6 to charge simultaneously through automated charge sequencing. Given the Application Manual’s definition of a “charging port” as a system that charges one EV at a time, does our configuration meet the requirement for at least 10 EV charging ports, or are only the 6 simultaneously charging ports considered eligible? 

A25:	Since only six charging ports would be used in this scenario, it would not meet the Minimum Infrastructure Requirement of at least 10 EV charging ports. 

Q26: 	The Application Manual suggests Level 2 chargers may be eligible if they support MDHD battery electric vehicles (BEVs), but only DCFC outputs are listed in the funding table, and Section C states each port must provide at least 60 kW. Are Level 2 chargers eligible for CEC funding under this GFO if all other criteria are met (e.g., supporting at least two MDHD BEVs per charger)? 

A26: 	Please see Addendum 5. Level 2 chargers are eligible for CEC funding.

Q27:	What’s the reasoning behind the minimum # of ports per project (Section B.2.)?

A27:	Requiring a minimum number of ports ensures that funded projects are of a sufficient scale to make a measurable impact on medium- and heavy-duty zero-emission vehicle deployment in California. Larger infrastructure deployments support scalability and improve the cost-efficiency of public investments. Additionally, the minimum infrastructure requirements align with the fleet transition needs identified in completed blueprints funded under GFO-20-601, many of which included plans for multiple vehicles, making multi-port infrastructure essential.

Q28:	Why are minimums on simultaneous power levels included in the solicitation? Many MDHD applications do not need more than Level 2, and this will inflate costs. Typical bidirectional equipment is 60kW as well, which makes this difficult for school districts. 

A28:	Please see Addendum 5 for new power level requirements (Section II.B.3). Level 2 chargers are eligible for CEC funding.
	
Additionally, minimums on simultaneous power levels are required if the electric vehicle charging station will be open for public access, and each charging station port must be capable of providing at least 200 kW (Section II.B.3.). If Automated Load Management (ALM) is being utilized, each charging station port must be capable of simultaneously providing at least 150 kW when all ports are in use. This requirement aims to provide sufficient charging speed for larger vehicles, facilitating efficient operations and reducing downtime. If the charging equipment is not for public use, the simultaneous power level minimums do not apply.

Q29:	Could an application be eligible if it makes the case that a per-port power capacity below 80kW is in the economic and operational interest of the project?

A29:	Please see Addendum 5 for power level requirements. If the electric vehicle charging station will be Private Access or Shared Access, each charging port must be capable of at least Level 2 charging. (Section II.B.3). If the electric vehicle charging station will be Public Access, each charging station port must be capable of providing at least 200 kW. This requirement is designed to ensure that the infrastructure supports the deployment of and performance needs of medium- and heavy-duty zero-emission vehicles.

Q30:	Is the minimum power capacity for public chargers a statutory requirement (Section B.2)?

A30:	No, the minimum power capacity requirement for public chargers specified in Section II.B. of the solicitation manual is a solicitation-specific requirement, not a statutory requirement.

Q31:	If the renewable distributed energy resources (DERs) supply power to EV loads and non-EV loads (facility loads), but the EV and non-EV loads are metered separately, are those renewable DERs eligible? If the renewable DERs are comingled with a backup diesel generator (totality of the microgrid is a combination of renewable DERs and diesel backup generator), are the renewable DERs (not the backup diesel generator) still eligible for CEC funding? Beyond the renewable DERs themselves, is the upstream electrical equipment like switchgear and transfer switches that support the renewable DERs eligible for CEC funding? 

A31:	Only the renewable DERs metered separately would be an eligible reimbursable or match share cost. If comingled with diesel, renewable DERs would still be eligible for both reimbursable and match, but the diesel generators would not be eligible for either. Upstream equipment is also an eligible reimbursable or match share cost. Please note that on-site solar/storage equipment is eligible for CEC reimbursement; however, solar/storage funds per port may not exceed 50% of CEC grant funds per port/refueling position. These costs will be included in the calculation of cost per port / refueling position for evaluation purposes. 

Q32:	The GFO Vehicle Deployment Requirements state: “... the fleet that is being provided with charging...must commit to...[a]t least three MDHD EVs per DC fast charger proposed for CEC funding.” Thus, if the project seeks to install 27 DC fast chargers, then the fleet must commit at least 81 MDHD EVs to the project. Do these Vehicle Deployment Requirements apply to off-road equipment or specialty vehicles? 

A32: 	Please see Addendum 5. A commitment of at least one (1) specialty vehicle, off-road equipment/vehicle, or non-road vehicle is required per charging port or refueling position.

Q33: 	Does each port count as a “DC fast charger” in the context of this text from the GFO: “... the fleet that is being provided with charging...must commit to...[a]t least three MDHD EVs per DC fast charger proposed for CEC funding.”  

A33: 	Please see Addendum 5. The fleet that is being provided with charging or fueling must commit to “[a]t least three MDHD EVs per charging port proposed for CEC funding”, where the charging port is defined as “The system within a charger that charges one electric vehicle. A charging port may have multiple connectors, but it can provide power to charge only one electric vehicle through one connector at a time.” 

Q34:	Does CEC anticipate that multiple vehicles will use the same charger and be cycled through once charging is complete? School bus charging infrastructure typically pairs one vehicle to one charger to enable optimized overnight and off-peak charging utilizing our charge management software. Without dedicated overnight charging spots, the school district would be required to move these vehicles during the night which would add additional staff costs and lead to less optimal charging. 

A34:	Yes, the CEC anticipates that multiple vehicles share a charger, particularly in scenarios where chargers are intended for opportunity charging or daytime fleet cycling. Level 2 chargers are eligible for reimbursement if they are used to charge MDHD electric vehicles.

Q35: 	If a project phases in vehicles over multiple years, how will compliance with the vehicle-to-charger ratio be measured? At the start of operations or by project completion?

A35: 	Compliance with the vehicle-to-charger ratio will be measured by the time infrastructure becomes energized and operational. 

	Other relevant requirements are as follows: To ensure that the infrastructure funded under this solicitation will be utilized, Applicants of Private or Shared access infrastructure projects must submit a Letter(s) of Intent to Place a Purchase Order (Attachment 20) per fleet with their application, with the exception of applicants using existing vehicles. The letter(s) must specify the type(s) and number(s) of ZEVs to be procured and justify the need for the proposed infrastructure. 

If an Applicant cannot place a purchase order within three (3) months of agreement execution, the CEC reserves the right, in addition to any other rights it has, to cancel the award and offer funding to the next highest scored eligible Applicant on the NOPA list. While the purchase order must be placed within three months of agreement execution, there is not a firm requirement by when the vehicles must be delivered. Infrastructure lead times or vehicle production lead times may vary and the fleet operator may need to ensure alignment of those. However, the vehicle orders must take place and vehicles must be delivered by the time the infrastructure becomes energized and operational. 

Q36: 	Would you please confirm how you would like for us to demonstrate "shared access"? Specifically, I'd like to know if you are looking for an attestation from the site host, the fleet that has agreed to share the infrastructure, or do you require a more formal agreement?  

A36: 	To demonstrate "shared access", the application should contain a Letter of Commitment (Attachment 8) from the fleet(s) that will be provided with charging or fueling services. This letter should confirm the fleet’s intent to utilize the shared infrastructure and outline the general terms of access.

Q37:  	The GFO states that “Applicants may also propose a project site not included in the blueprint...” How do you define site? Our project location has one address and will deploy infrastructure at up to three places located at that address. Would our project include one site (based on the single address) or three sites (based on the number of locations of infrastructure installations at that address)? How do you define “site?” Would individual interconnections at the same address be considered separate projects?

A37: 	For the purposes of this solicitation, a “site” is defined by a single physical address. Therefore, even if the proposed project involves multiple infrastructure installations within that address, it would still be considered one site. Multiple interconnections at the same site would still be considered a single project and should be submitted under one application.

Q38: 	Do you have any insights, guidance, or recommendations for a parallel approach to participate in this or a similar active solicitation? 

A38: 	To explore other opportunities for participation in this or similar active solicitations, please subscribe to the CEC’s listserv for updates and regularly checking the CEC’s Funding Opportunities page at https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-opportunities/solicitations for the latest solicitations and announcements.

Q39: 	When will we be able to begin obtaining the electric vehicles required for shared access projects? May we obtain them prior to funding, only after funding has been awarded or only after the infrastructure is in place? 

A39:	Applicants of Private or Shared access infrastructure projects must submit a Letter(s) of Intent to Place a Purchase Order (Attachment 20) per fleet with their application, with the exception of applicants using existing vehicles. The letter(s) must specify the type(s) and number(s) of ZEVs to be procured and justify the need for the proposed infrastructure.

If an Applicant cannot place a purchase order within three (3) months of agreement execution, the CEC reserves the right, in addition to any other rights it has, to cancel the award and offer funding to the next highest scored eligible Applicant on the NOPA list. While the purchase order must be placed within three months of agreement execution, there is not a firm requirement by when the vehicles must be delivered.

The vehicles being supported must either be new vehicles being procured or existing vehicles that were not able to be used due to a lack of infrastructure. New vehicles procured as part of a resulting grant agreement may be eligible for match funding. Existing vehicles are not eligible for reimbursement or match funding.

Q40:	In the GFO, one of the success criteria is average daily vehicle miles traveled (VMT). While this works well for projects deploying infrastructure that will serve MDHD trucks, VMT does not seem to be a good way of measuring the success of off-road or specialty equipment, such as forklifts, cargo handling equipment, or industrial equipment. Can you explain if VMT applies equally to such equipment and, if not, provide an alternative metric?’ 

A40: 	Please see Addendum 5. In place of vehicle miles traveled, applicants must provide operations and average daily engine hours, as well as number of engine hours and fuel volume to be replaced by zero-emission alternatives for specialty, off-road, or non-road applications. 
 
[bookmark: _Hlk196974059]Q41: 	Can you clarify whether the lead applicant has to own and operate the charging infrastructure?

A41:	There can only be one applicant (this clarification is made because the question asks about a “lead” applicant). If awarded a grant by CEC, the applicant is referred to as the recipient. If awarded, the recipient has to own charging infrastructure acquired with grant funds, which may be operated by that recipient or a key project partner. The recipient or a key project partner must operate each proposed station and ensure that it remains operational for a minimum of six years, whether the station is public, shared, or private. The CEC’s Terms and Conditions state: “Title to equipment acquired by the Recipient with grant funds shall vest in the Recipient. The Recipient shall use the equipment in the project or program for which it was acquired as long as needed, whether or not the project or program continues to be supported by grant funds, and the Recipient shall not encumber the property without CAM approval. When no longer needed for the original project or program, the Recipient shall contact the CAM for disposition instructions.” 

Q42:	The lead applicant or key project partner can own and operate the charging infrastructure, but what about site ownership?

A42:	A project site may be owned or leased; however, the Applicant must demonstrate in the Project Narrative (Attachment 1) that the Applicant, or a key project partner can operate each proposed station and maintain its operational status for a minimum of six years. Applications will be evaluated on the degree to which the project site is secured. Site control includes, but is not limited to leases, ownership, or access rights. (See Section III.D.2.b.iv) Applications must include a letter of commitment from the current owner of the site for each proposed station location. If a proposed site is owned AND operated by the same entity or individual, the letter shall state so. (See Section III.D.8.)

Q43: 	Is Section 2.C. in the solicitation manual the standard language for Open Retail across all CEC solicitations?

A43:	No. Section 2.C. “Minimum Technical Requirements Electric Vehicle Charging Stations” is not standard language across all CEC solicitations. Each CEC grant solicitation is tailored to specific objectives and technologies. While some CEC solicitations may include some version of the technical requirements found in Section 2.C., others may not. Applicants should refer to the specific solicitation manual of interest to understand the applicable technical requirements.

Q44: 	Is the ten-charger minimum requirement a firm threshold, or is there any flexibility for vessel chargers? The set number of chargers provision is not aligned with the inclusion of "marine" in the off-road category?

A44:	The Minimum Infrastructure Requirement does not apply to off-road or non-road applications. Please see Section 2.B.1. Eligible Projects. 

Q45:	Under what circumstances would the application need to show proof of an MDHD purchase?

A45: 	If proposing a Private Access or Shared Access infrastructure project, the fleet that is being provided with charging or fueling must commit to:  
· At least two MDHD EVs per Level 2 charging port proposed for CEC funding; 
· At least three MDHD EVs per DC fast charging port proposed for CEC funding; 
· At least 15 MDHD FCEVs per every one hydrogen fueling position proposed for CEC funding; or 
· At least one specialty vehicle, off-road equipment/vehicle, or non-road vehicle per EV charging port or hydrogen refueling position. 

Applicants must place a purchase order within three (3) months of agreement execution. Applicants who already own ZEVs or have recently placed a purchase order for ZEVs that will use the proposed infrastructure must submit a letter stating the type(s) and number(s) of ZEVs and explaining the need for the new infrastructure instead of a Letter of Intent to Place a Purchase Order. Please see Section 2.B.4. Vehicle Deployment Requirements. 

Eligible Reimbursable and Match Share Costs 

Q46. 	Can the cost of an MDHD vehicle be used as match?

A46: 	Yes. The purchase, rent, or lease of new MDHD ZEVs may be eligible as match share. These costs are only eligible if they are incurred after execution of an awarded agreement. Existing vehicles are not eligible for reimbursement or match funding.

Q47: 	Match funding cannot be incurred until agreements are executed. Why did this treatment change in the recent manual revision? 

A47:  	Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funds do not allow match costs to be incurred until agreements have been executed.

Q48:	Could this grant funding opportunity provide additional funding for electrified charging floats (floating charging infrastructure for electric vessels) some of which have received Federal Transit Administration funding?

A48:	GFO-24-611 is offering funding for infrastructure supporting zero-emission, off-road equipment or specialty vehicles provided the proposed project meets the minimum requirements of the solicitation. For the purposes of this solicitation, off-road applications include vehicles or equipment that do not perform their primary operations on a road or highway. “Off-road” may include, but is not limited to, cargo-handling equipment, yard tractors, as well as marine, rail, or aviation. (See Section II.B.1.) Purchase of MDHD ZEVs, off-road equipment, or specialty vehicles is not eligible for reimbursement, but may be eligible as match share.

Please note, Applicants who previously received funding under the Implementation of MDHD ZEV Infrastructure Blueprints solicitation (GFO-23-603) are eligible to apply again, provided the proposed project pertains to a different site identified in the blueprint and supports infrastructure for a different fleet.
	(See Section II.A.1.)
 
Q49: 	Can forklifts without dedicated charging be considered match or do they need to be brand new?

A49: 	If the vehicles or equipment have already been purchased, they would not be considered eligible for match if acquired before the agreement is executed.

Q50:	If proof of MDHD vehicle purchases is required, would publicly accessible chargers still be eligible for funding? 

A50:  	Publicly-accessible chargers are eligible for funding under this solicitation, provided they meet the minimum infrastructure requirements (Section II.C.), are consistent with the plans outlined in the approved blueprint, and a fleet operator letter of commitment is provided at time of application (Section III.D.8.c.). Proof of MDHD vehicle purchases is not required. 

Applications that result in proposed awards and executed agreements will be required to collect data from the project and perform recordkeeping and reporting on operations and reliability as specified in the Scope of Work (Attachment 2).

Q51:	Are Applicants eligible to apply for open-retail charging if they do not own any vehicles? If so, is there a proof of vehicle purchase and/or commitment requirement?

A51:	Applicants are eligible for the Public Access charging option if they do not own any vehicles. Applicants would still be required to submit a fleet commitment letter. Refer to Section III.D.8.c. of the solicitation manual.
	
Q52: 	What is the CEC’s definition of a Class 2b zero-emission Vehicle? Can you please clarify if the F150 Lightning counts as a Class 2b Medium Duty vehicle, and if so, what is the gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) that can be applied to assess other medium-? Ford F150 lightning is usually GVWR 8,850-10,000 lbs.

A52:	For the purpose of this solicitation, medium-duty vehicles are defined as having a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) between 10,001 – 26,000 pounds and include weight classes 3, 4, 5, and 6. Heavy-duty vehicles are defined as having a GVWR of 26,001 pounds and above and include weight classes 7 and 8. 

Q53: 	If an approved eligible Applicant submits a request for funding under GFO-24-611, but the request is not a significant component of their approved blueprint funded under GFO-20-601, would that be a potential issue for a potential award?

A53:	CEC cannot advise in this Q&A on whether this would or would not be a potential issue for a potential award as not all factors are known.

Applications will be scored on the degree to which the proposed project demonstrates strong alignment with the strategies and infrastructure plans outlined in the original blueprint for the fleet or case study participant identified in the completed blueprint. While the proposed project is not required to implement the entire blueprint, the requested funding for infrastructure must correspond to components identified in the blueprint and meet the minimum infrastructure requirement outlined in the solicitation. Applicants are not required to submit an application that requests the maximum award amount and will be scored on the degree to which the CEC funding per port/refueling position is minimized and justified for the proposed infrastructure power level/refueling capacity. 

Miscellaneous 

Q54: 	Is there a teaming list available for this solicitation?

A54:	Prospective Applicants looking for partnering opportunities for this grant funding opportunity should register on the CEC’s Empower Innovation website at www.empowerinnovation.net. Once registered, click “Find a Partner” at the top of the page to show your interest in this opportunity, as well as view and message other interested members. This specific grant funding opportunity can be found at the following link: https://www.empowerinnovation.net/en/custom/funding/view/46697. 

Q55: 	Will a list of attendees to this webinar be provided? 

A55:	No. Please submit a Public Records Act Request to the CEC (https://www.energy.ca.gov/contact/public-records-act-requests) or reach out to the assigned Commission Agreement Officer (CAO) on this solicitation enrico.palo@energy.ca.gov for more information.

Q56:	Is there a public resource where we can access the completed blueprint project documents submitted from GFO-20-601 blueprint awardees? 

A56: 	Yes, the CEC’s Medium- and Heavy-Duty Zero-Emission Vehicle Infrastructure "Blueprint" Planning Documents webpage is live; however, not all approved blueprints are currently posted due to ongoing ADA compliance efforts. Completed blueprints can be accessed at the following link: 
https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/clean-transportation-program/medium-and-heavy-duty-zero-emission. Reach out to the Commission Agreement Officer identified in Section I.L. Contact Information to request any blueprint not currently posted.

Q57:  What is the required performance period for grant recipients?

A57:   As stated in Section III.D.4., all work must be scheduled for completion by no later than March 31, 2029, to allow timely processing of final invoices before the liquidation date of CEC funds. Projects proposed for an award in the Notice of Proposed Awards will need to go to a CEC Business Meeting for approval, anticipated to be in mid-2026, followed by agreement execution. The effective date of this Agreement is either the start date listed on form CEC-146 or the approval signature date on the grant agreement by the CEC representative, whichever is later. No work is authorized, nor shall any work begin, until on or after the effective date.
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